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Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Regents 
Regional University System of Oklahoma 
East Central University 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of East Central University 
(the University), a department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma 
(RUSO), which is a component unit of the State of Oklahoma, and its discretely 
presented component unit, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise East Central 
University’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on 
our audit.  We did not audit the financial statements of the discretely presented 
component unit, the East Central Foundation, Inc., (the Foundation).  Those 
financial statements were audited by other auditors, whose report has been 
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for 
the Foundation, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

5950 S. Willow Dr., Ste. 302 
Greenwood Village, 
Colorado 80111
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements.  We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditor, the financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
University and its discretely presented component unit as of June 30, 2021, and the respective 
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
As discussed in Note A, the financial statements of the University are intended to present the 
financial position, the changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows of only that 
portion of RUSO that is attributable to the transactions of the University.  They do not purport to, 
and do not present fairly the financial position of RUSO as of June 30, 2021, the changes in its 
financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information as listed in the 
table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplemental information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements.  We 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
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Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the East Central University’s basic financial statements.  The schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, but is not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. 
 
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 30, 2020 on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting 
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the University’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 
 
 
Greenwood Village, Colorado 
October 29, 2021 
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OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
East Central University (the “University”) presents its financial statements for fiscal year 2021.  
Presented separately from the University are the financial statements of East Central University 
Foundation, Inc. (“the Foundation”).  The Foundation is a discretely presented component unit of 
East Central University and has trustees that are independently elected.  The Foundation also 
issues its financial statements in a separate report.  Emphasis of discussions concerning these 
statements will be for the 2021 fiscal year data in comparison with the 2020 fiscal year data.  While 
the 2020 data is not a part of the financial statements, significant fluctuations between the 2021 
and 2020 data will be discussed.  The Foundation’s statements will not be a part of this discussion 
and analysis.  The three financial statements, prepared in accordance with Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) principles, are the Statement of Net Position; the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and the Statement of Cash 
Flows.  Since changes reflected in the Statement of Cash Flows will be discussed in the analysis 
of the other two statements, the Statement of Cash Flows will not be presented in this discussion 
and analysis.  Dollar amounts presented in table and graph formats are in thousands of dollars, 
and those presented in the discussion are rounded to thousands.  This discussion and analysis 
of the University’s financial statements is designed to assist the readers in understanding the 
accompanying financial statements and to summarily quantify the status, sources, and uses of 
resources.  The University will also utilize these statements in conjunction with prior year data to 
focus on trends and establish benchmark comparisons. 
 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents the Assets (current and non-current), Deferred Outflows 
of Resources, Liabilities (current and non-current), Deferred Inflows or Resources and Net 
Position (assets plus deferred outflows minus liabilities minus deferred inflows) at the end of the 
fiscal year.  The purpose of the Statement of Net Position is to allow readers of the financial 
statements to determine the assets available to continue the operations of the University.  They 
are also able to determine how much the University owes vendors, investors, and lending 
institutions.  Finally, the Statement of Net Position provides a picture of the net position and their 
availability for expenditure by the University.  The change in net position is an indicator of the 
overall financial condition of the University. 
 
Net position is divided into three major categories.  The first category, Net Investment in Capital 
Assets, provides the institution’s equity in property, plant, and equipment owned by the University 
and is recorded at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.  The next category, Restricted-
Expendable Net Position, measured in current value, is available for expenditure by the institution 
but must be spent for purposes as determined by donors and/or external entities that have placed 
time or purpose restrictions on the use of the assets.  The final category is Unrestricted Net 
Position, also measured in current value.  Unrestricted assets are available to the institution for 
any lawful purpose of the institution.
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued) 
 

2021 2020

ASSETS
Current assets 28,241$            23,754$            
Capital assets, net 86,379              84,558              
Other assets 3,973                5,049                

TOTAL ASSETS 118,593$          113,361$          

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on OCIA lease restructure 597$                 632$                 

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities 6,243$              5,042$              
Noncurrent Liabilities 29,063              31,413              

TOTAL LIABILITIES 35,306$            36,455$            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred gain on OCIA lease restructure 183$                 203$                 

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 56,560$            52,904$            
Restricted-expendable 7,754                8,261                
Unrestricted 19,387              16,170              

TOTAL NET POSITION 83,701$            77,335$            

June 30

(Thousands of Dollars)

 
 

The increase in current assets is due to an increase in cash and cash equivalents and in grants 
and contracts receivables.  This increase is due to mainly to Higher Education Emergency Relief 
Funds (HEERF) that the institution has received. The increase in capital assets of approximately 
$1,800,000 was due to capital asset additions of approximately $6,000,000 offset by depreciation 
expense of approximately $3,900,000.  Major asset additions included several information 
technology projects completed with HEERF funds to allow for easier distance learning for 
students, as well as a renovation to the Bill S. Cole University Center. 
 
Total current liabilities increased by approximately $1,200,000, which is made up of an increase 
in accounts and scholarships payable. Total noncurrent liabilities decreased by approximately 
$2,300,000 which is mainly due to payments on our ODFA master lease obligations. 
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
 
Another measure of an institution’s fiscal stability is how operating revenues compare to operating 
expenses.  Operating revenues are earned in exchange for providing goods and services, and 
operating expenses are incurred in the normal operations of the University.  While public 
institutions will not normally have an excess of operating revenues over operating expenses 
(State Appropriations, some federal and state grants, gifts, and investment income are required 
to be reported as non-operating Revenues by GASB principles), the excess of operating revenues 
and non-operating revenues over expenses is normally an indication of the University’s ability to 
operate within its available resources. 
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued) 
 

2020 2019

OPERATING REVENUES
Tuition, fees, housing, & food service 24,736$            25,591$            
Grants and contracts 5,134                5,269                
Other operating revenues 1,415                1,914                

     TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 31,285              32,774              

OPERATING EXPENSES
Compensation 31,803              33,068              
Contractual services 6,419                5,668                
Supplies & materials 4,654                4,214                
Depreciation 3,930                4,014                
Other operating expenses 13,763              17,980              

     TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 60,569              64,944              

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (29,284)             (32,170)             

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations 13,395              13,956              
Grants and contracts                                           20,902              14,705              
Other revenues 488                   337                   
Interest expense (1,089)               (1,125)               

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 33,696              27,873              

OTHER REVENUES AND GAINS 1,954                1,795                

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 6,366                (2,502)               

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 77,335              77,324              

Implementation of GASB Statement No. 84 -                        225                   

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR RESTATED 77,335              79,837              

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 83,701$            77,335$            

June 30,

(Thousands of Dollars)

Years Ended
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued) 
 
The University experienced an enrollment decrease of approximately 3.0% for fiscal year 2021 
and tuition and fees were not increased for fiscal year 2021.  This resulted in operating revenues 
decreasing by approximately 3.0% or about $850,000.  In 2020, the University experienced an 
enrollment increase of 1.8% and increased in tuition and fees by between 3.5%. This resulted in 
an increase in tuition and fees. Nonoperating revenues increased by approximately $5,800,000 
due to an increase in government grants.  The increase in government grants was due to the 
inflow of Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF). 
 
Operating expenses decreased by approximately $4,400,000 due mainly to decreases in 
compensation and employee benefits of $1,300,000 and scholarships and fellowships of 
$2,800,000. The change in compensation and employee benefits will be a one-time decrease 
because it is due to the timing of faculty compensation. 
   
The major sources of revenues and expenditures (operating and non-operating) by the financial 
statement categories are summarized in the charts on the next page (in thousands of dollars). 
 

REVENUES 
 

 

  

$26,036

$13,395 

$24,736 

$3,857

Grants and contract revenues

State appropriations

Tuition, fees, housing, food service

Other revenues
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued) 
 

EXPENSES 

 

 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the University’s financial results by 
reporting the major sources and uses of cash and cash equivalents.  Cash flows from operating 
activities show the net cash used by the operating activities of the University.  Cash flows from 
noncapital financing activities consist primarily of revenue sources that fund operations but are 
considered non-operating activities by definition.  Cash flows from capital activities include capital 
asset and related long-term debt activities.  Cash flows from investing activities show the 
proceeds and uses of cash related to purchasing or selling investments and related investment 
earnings thereon.  The University’s Statement of Cash Flows is presented on pages 13 and 14 of 
the financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$31,803

$6,419

$3,930 

$4,654

$14,852 
Compensation

Contractual services

Depreciation

Supplies and Materials

Other expense, including scholarships
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ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 
 
During the 2021 fiscal year, total expenses exceeded total revenues by approximately 
$6,400,000.  This was due to strategic a strategic reduction in spending as well as the inflow of 
Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF). In fiscal year 2021, tuition, fees, housing, 
and food service revenue accounted for 36% of the University’s total revenue.  The University 
increased undergraduate and graduate tuition and fees by 2.0% for the 2021-2022 school year.  
The Fall 2021 enrollment was down 8.0%.    
 
State appropriations were approximately 20% of total revenues for fiscal year 2021.  State 
appropriations to the University are expected to remain flat; therefore, total state appropriations 
are not expected to be returned to the fiscal year ending 2009 level.  Therefore, the University will 
continue to feel a negative impact from this financial source. 
 
Grant and contract revenues currently represent 38% of total revenues for fiscal year 2021.  Grant 
and contract resources have been positively impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic through the 
inflow of Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF) into the University. 
 
The University has prepared contingency plans and continues to operate using a conservative 
spending plan due to the decrease in state appropriations in the past years and due to the on-
going COVID-19 pandemic. 



Component
Unit

ASSETS  

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 24,052,553$      1,025,775$           
Accounts receivable, net 1,690,668          114,735                
Grants and contracts receivable 2,480,337          -                            
Interest receivable 11,196               -                            
Other receivable 6,706                 -                            

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 28,241,460        1,140,510             

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,435,065          -                            
Restricted investments 238,337             -                            
Investments  -                         41,056,869           
Receivable from OSRHE Endowment Trust Fund 299,358             -                            
Other assets -                         32,459                  
Capital assets, net 86,378,737        342,186                

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 90,351,497        41,431,514           

TOTAL ASSETS 118,592,957$    42,572,024$         

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred charge on capital lease restructure 597,197$           -$                          

University

East Central University
(A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma)

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021

(Continued)

See Notes to the Financial Statements.  4



Component
Unit

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts and scholarships payable 1,971,680$        25,720$                
Accrued payroll 39,301               12,530                  
Accrued interest 54,500               -                            
Unearned revenue 1,264,778          -                            
Current portion of noncurrent liabilities 2,912,691          -                            

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,242,950          38,250                  

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued compensated absences 943,722             -                            
Bonds payable 3,328,012          -                            
Unearned revenue 845,483             -                            
ODFA master lease obligations 18,955,480        -                            
Lease obligations payable to OCIA 4,990,095          -                            

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 29,062,792        -                            

TOTAL LIABILITIES 35,305,742$      38,250$                

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred gain on OCIA lease restructure 182,660$           -$                          

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 56,560,468$      -$                          
Restricted:

Nonexpendable:
Grants, bequests and contributions -                         40,142,101           

Expendable:
Scholarships, instruction and other 4,318,855          -                            
Loans 72,989               -                            
Capital projects 3,362,076          -                            

Unrestricted 19,387,364        2,391,673             

TOTAL NET POSITION 83,701,752$      42,533,774$         

University

East Central University
(A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma)

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021

(Continued)

See Notes to the Financial Statements.  5



Component
University Unit

OPERATING REVENUES
Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances
  of $9,336,114 19,756,732$     -$                       
Federal grants and contracts 4,799,072         -                         
State and local grants and contracts 334,986             -                         
Bookstore operations 99,111               -                         
Housing and food service  (revenues of  $3,249,033 pledged
  as security on ODFA 2014 bonds). 4,979,324         -                         
Investment income -                         6,930,390         
Contributions -                         1,772,007         
Other operating revenues 1,315,950         98,027               

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 31,285,175       8,800,424         

OPERATING EXPENSES
Compensation and employee benefits 31,803,492       285,520             
Contractual services 6,418,942         43,108               
Supplies and materials 4,653,959         1,818                 
Depreciation 3,930,331         -                         
Utilities 957,879             -                         
Communication expense 195,761             -                         
Scholarships and fellowships 11,726,204       -                         
Other operating expenses 882,461             2,148,085         

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 60,569,029       2,478,531         

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (29,283,854)      6,321,893         

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations 13,395,129       -                         
Federal Grants 14,353,416       -                         
State Grants 6,548,892         -                         
Investment income 194,056             -                         
Other Non-Operating Revenues 293,256             -                         
Interest expense (1,088,651)        -                         

NET NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES) 33,696,098       -                         

Income before other revenues, expenses, gains, and losses 4,412,244         6,321,893         

CAPITAL GIFTS AND GRANTS
State appropriations restricted for capital purposes 1,222,619         -                         
Capital Contributions 469,688             -                         
OCIA on-behalf state appropriations 262,102             -                         

TOTAL CAPITAL GIFTS AND GRANTS 1,954,409         -                         

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 6,366,653         6,321,893         

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 77,335,099       36,211,881       

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 83,701,752$     42,533,774$     

East Central University
(A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2021

See Notes to the Financial Statements.  6



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Tuition and fees 19,500,172$    
Grants and contracts 3,609,664        
Auxiliary enterprise charges 6,394,385        
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits (31,755,892)    
Payments to suppliers (24,868,409)    

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (27,120,080)    

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State appropriations 13,395,129      
Nonoperating grants, primarily student financial assistance 20,902,308      
Cash received from Non-Operating Revenues 293,256           
Direct loan/FFEL receipts (10,836,003)    
Direct loan/FFEL payments 10,836,003      

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 34,590,693      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales of investments 328,721           
Purchase of investments (326,108)         
Investment income received 123,131           

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 125,744           

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
  RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash paid for capital assets (5,082,302)      
Capital appropriations received 1,850,942        
Drawdown of ODFA receivable 112,773           
Repayments of capital debt and leases (1,757,696)      
Interest paid on capital debt and leases (891,591)         

NET CASH USED IN CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (5,767,874)      

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,828,483        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 25,659,135      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 27,487,618$    

East Central University
(A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma)

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2021

(Continued)

See Notes to the Financial Statements.  7



RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO

  NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss (29,283,854)$  
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
  to net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation 3,930,331        
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Student accounts receivable (103,069)         
Grants and Other receivables (1,524,394)      
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (33,203)            
Accrued payroll 19,412             
Unearned revenue (153,491)         
Compensated absences 28,188             

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (27,120,080)$  

NONCASH INVESTING, NONCAPITAL FINANCING AND 
  CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest on capital debt paid by OCIA
  on behalf of the University 262,102$         

Principal on capital debt paid by OCIA
  on behalf of the University -$                     

Deferred cost on OCIA lease restructure -$                     

Deferred gain on OCIA lease restructure -$                     

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
  TO STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 24,052,553$    

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,435,065        

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27,487,618$    

East Central University
(A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma)

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2021

(Continued)

See Notes to the Financial Statements  8
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Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of Organization:  East Central University (the University) is a regional University operating 
under the jurisdiction of the Regional University System of Oklahoma (RUSO or the System) 
and the Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education. 
 
Reporting Entity:  The University is one of six institutions of higher education in Oklahoma that 
comprise part of RUSO, which in turn is part of the Higher Education component unit of the 
State of Oklahoma.  
  
The Board of Regents has constitutional authority to govern, control and manage the System; 
which consist of six institutions and an administrative office. This authority includes but is not 
limited to the power to designate management, the ability to significantly influence operations, 
acquire and take title to real and personal property in its name,  appoint or hire all necessary 
officers, supervisors, instructors, and employees for member institutions.  
  
The University is considered a department of the System for financial reporting purposes and is 
included in the System’s financial reporting entity.  
 
Discretely Presented Component Units:  East Central University Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) 
is a component unit of the University under GASB 39 that is discretely presented with the 
financial statements of the University.  The University is the beneficiary of the Foundation, a 
separate legal entity with their own Boards of Trustees.  The Foundation is organized for the 
benefit of the University, and its faculty, student body, and programs.  The purposes for which 
the Foundation is organized are exclusively scientific, literary, charitable, educational, and 
artistic for the benefit the University.  Additional and selected disclosures for the Foundation are 
located in this report beginning with Note L.  A complete report of the Foundation’s financial 
statements and footnotes can be requested form the Foundation’s director. 
 
The Foundation is a private nonprofit organization that reports under the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) standards.  As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation 
features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and presentation features.  No 
modifications have been made to the Foundation’s financial information in the University’s 
financial reporting entity for these differences. 
 
Financial Statement Presentation:  The University’s financial statements are presented in 
accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statement and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, and GASB 
Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for 
Public Colleges and Universities.  Under GASB Statements No. 34 and 35, the University is 
required to present a statement of net position classified between current and noncurrent assets 
and liabilities and deferred outflow and inflows, a statement of revenues, expenses and changes 
in net position, with separate presentation for operating and nonoperating revenues and 
expenses, and a statement of cash flows using the direct method. 
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Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Basis of Accounting:  For financial reporting purposes, the University is considered a 
department of a special-purpose government engaged only in business-type activities.  
Accordingly, the University’s financial statements have been presented using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis, 
revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation has 
been incurred.  All significant intra-agency transactions have been eliminated. 
 
Cash Equivalents:  For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the University considers all 
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents.  Funds invested through the State Treasurer’s Cash Management Program are 
considered cash equivalents. 
 
Investments:  The University accounts for its investments at fair value in accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External 
Investment Pools.  Changes in unrealized gain (loss) on the carrying value of investments are 
reported as a component of investment income in the statement of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position. 
 
Restricted Cash and Investments:  Cash and investments that are externally restricted to make 
debt service payments, maintain sinking or reserve funds, or to purchase capital or other 
noncurrent assets are classified as restricted assets in the statement of net position. 
 
Accounts and Grants Receivable:  Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges to 
students and auxiliary enterprise services provided to students, faculty, and staff, the majority of 
each residing in the State of Oklahoma.  Grants receivable include amounts due from the 
federal government, state and local governments, or private sources, in connection with 
reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant to the University’s grant and contracts.  
Accounts and grants receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts. 
 
Capital Assets:  Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or fair value at the 
date of donation in the case of gifts.  For equipment, the University’s capitalization policy 
includes all items with a unit cost of $2,500 or more and an estimated useful life of greater than 
one year.  Computer Equipment with a unit cost of $500 or more and an estimated useful life of 
greater than one year.  Renovations to buildings, infrastructure, and land improvements that 
significantly increase the value or extend the useful life of the structure are capitalized.  Routine 
repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expense in the year in which the expense 
was incurred.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets, generally 40 to 60 years for buildings, 20 to 30 years for infrastructure 
and land improvements, and 5 to 10 years for library materials and equipment.  Depreciation 
expense includes amortization of assets held under capital lease obligations. 
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Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Unearned Revenue:  Unearned revenues include amounts received for tuition and fees and 
certain auxiliary activities prior to the end of the fiscal year but related to the subsequent 
accounting period.  Unearned revenues also include amounts received from grant and contract 
sponsors and vendors that have not yet been earned. 
 
Compensated Absences:  Employee vacation pay is accrued at year-end for financial statement 
purposes.  The liability and expense incurred are recorded at year-end as accrued 
compensated absences in the statement of net position and as a component of compensation 
and benefit expense in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 
 
Noncurrent liabilities:  Noncurrent liabilities include (1) principal amounts of revenue bonds 
payable, notes payable, and capital lease obligations with contractual maturities greater than 
one year; (2) estimated amounts for accrued compensated absences and other liabilities that 
will not be paid within the next fiscal year; and (3) other liabilities that, although payable within 
one year, are to be paid from funds that are classified as noncurrent assets. 
 
Deferred Outflows of Resources: Deferred outflows are the consumption of net position by the 
University that is applicable to a future reporting period. At June 30, 2021, the University’s 
deferred outflows of resources were comprised of deferred charges on capital lease restructure. 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources: Deferred inflows are the acquisition of net position by the 
University that is applicable to a future reporting period. At June 30, 2021, the University’s 
deferred inflows of resources were comprised of deferred gain on capital lease restructure. 
 
Net position:  The University’s net position is classified as follows: 

Net investment in capital assets:  This represents the University’s total investment in capital 
assets, net of outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets.  To the extent debt 
has been incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included as 
a component of invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 
Restricted net position - expendable:  Restricted expendable net position include resources in 
which the University is legally or contractually obligated to spend resources in accordance 
with restrictions imposed by external third parties or enabling legislation. 
Unrestricted net position:  Unrestricted net position represents resources derived from 
student tuition and fees, state appropriations, and sales and services of educational 
departments and auxiliary enterprises.  These resources are used for transactions relating to 
the educational and general operations of the University and may be used at the discretion of 
the governing board to meet current expenses for any purpose.  These resources also 
include auxiliary enterprises, which are substantially self-supporting activities that provide 
services for students, faculty, and staff. 
 

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources, 
the University’s policy is to first apply the expense towards restricted resources and then toward 
unrestricted resources. 
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Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Income Taxes:  The University, as a political subdivision of the State of Oklahoma, is exempt 
from all federal income taxes under Section 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended. 
 
Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from these 
estimates. 
 
Classification of Revenues:  The University has classified its revenues as either operating or 
nonoperating revenues according to the following criteria: 

Operating revenues:  Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of 
exchange transactions, such as (1) student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and 
allowances; (2) sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, net of scholarship discounts and 
allowances; and (3) certain grants and contracts. 
 
Nonoperating revenues:  Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the 
characteristics of nonexchange transactions, such as gifts and contributions, student aid 
revenues, and other revenue sources that are defined as nonoperating revenues by GASB 
No. 9 Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and 
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting and GASB No. 34, such as 
state appropriations, governmental, and other pass through grants and investment income. 

 
Scholarship Discounts and Allowances:  Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other 
revenues from students, are reported net of scholarship discounts and allowances in the 
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.  Scholarship discounts and 
allowances are the difference between the stated charge for goods and services provided by the 
University and the amount that is paid by students and/or third parties making payments on the 
students’ behalf.  Certain governmental grants, such as Pell grants, and other federal, state, or 
nongovernmental programs are recorded as nonoperating revenues in the University’s financial 
statements.  To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees 
and other student charges, the University has recorded a scholarship discount and allowance. 
 
Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity 
for third parties and therefore are not available to support University programs. The reporting 
focus is net position and changes in net position and uses accounting principles similar to 
proprietary funds. 
 
Agency Funds: Agency Funds are used to report resources held by the University in a purely 
custodial capacity (assets equal liabilities). Agency fund assets and liabilities are recognized 
using the accrual basis of accounting. The University has one agency fund for the Oklahoma 
Higher Education Employee Interlocal Group. 
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Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Subsequent Events:  
 
The University has evaluated subsequent events through October 29, 2021, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
 
 
Note B: Deposits and Investments 
 
Deposits:  Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
University’s deposits may not be returned or the University will not be able to recover collateral 
securities in the possession of an outside party.  Generally, the University deposits its funds with 
the Office of the State Treasurer (OST) and those funds are pooled with funds of other state 
agencies and then, in accordance with statutory limitations, are placed in financial institutions or 
invested as the OST may determine, in the State’s name. 
 
There are $27,485,988 in cash and cash equivalents on deposit with the State Treasurer as of 
June 30, 2021. Of the $27,485,988 on deposit with the State Treasurer, $11,384,164, 
represents amounts held within OK INVEST, an internal investment pool.   State Agencies and 
funds that are considered to be part of the State’s reporting entity in the State’s Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report are allowed to participate in OK INVEST.  Oklahoma statutes and the 
State Treasurer establish the primary objectives and guidelines governing the investment of 
funds in OK INVEST.  Safety, liquidity, and return on investment are the objectives that 
establish the framework for the day-to-day OK INVEST management of funds with an emphasis 
on safety of the capital and the probable income to be derived while also meeting the State’s 
daily cash flow requirements.  Guidelines in the State Treasurer’s Investment Policy address 
credit quality requirements, diversification percentages and the types and maturities of allowable 
investments. The specifics regarding these policies can be found on the State Treasurer’s 
website at http://www.ok.gov/treasurer/.  An evaluation of the use and purpose of the various 
State Agencies and funds participation in the internal investment pool has determined that the 
amount on deposit with OK INVEST are treated as demand accounts and reported as cash 
equivalents.  
 
Neither the University nor state statutes limit investment maturities as a means of managing 
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates; however, the OST 
investment policy limits the average maturity on its portfolio to four (4) years, with certain 
individual securities having more restrictive limits as defined in the policy.  Concentration of 
credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the University’s investment in a single 
issuer.   
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Note B: Deposits and Investments (Continued) 
 
Neither the University’s investment policy nor state statutes place limits on amounts that can be 
invested in any one issuer; however, the OST investment policy states that, with the exception 
of U.S. Treasury securities, no more than 50% of the State’s total funds may be invested in a 
single security type or with a single financial institution, with diversification percentages being 
more restrictive on individual securities.  Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in 
the event of failure of the counterparty, the University will not be able to recover the value of its 
investments or collateral securities in the possession of an outside party.  As of June 30, 2021, 
none of the University’s investments were subject to custody credit risk. 
 
Bond fund cash and investments:  Certain non-pooled cash and investments are restricted in 
purpose by policies incorporated in applicable bond indentures.  Credit risk policy generally 
restricts investing to cash, investments fully insured by the FDIC and U.S. government, and 
agency securities or mutual funds investing in these types of securities.  There may be some 
variance among the investments authorized by the specific bond indentures of University bond 
issues.  The OST and/or a trustee bank generally provide the management of restricted, non-
pooled investments. 
 
Custodial credit risk is not addressed by bond indentures.  Interest rate risk in bond indentures 
provide that investments mature in no more than six to sixty months depending on the purpose 
of the funds and the requirements of the account in which the funds are deposited (i.e., 
construction, reserve, operations, and maintenance, etc.).  Concentration of credit risk is not 
addressed. 
 
At June 30, 2021, the University had restricted investments in bond funds amounting to 
$238,337.  The investment funds had a fair market value of $238,337 at June 30, 2021.  The 
invested bond funds are not subject to maturity dates and are due on demand. 
 
The University, in association with various Trustees, has by law and in accordance with the trust 
indentures obtained various security and investment accounts to pay bond indebtedness and 
secure funds for said future payments.  These funds are invested at the discretion of the 
Trustee, with no input from the University.  Invested bond funds of $238,337 had an average 
credit rating of Aaa-mf at June 30, 2021, according to Moody’s. 
 
The University implemented GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, 
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.  The University categorizes its fair value 
measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting 
principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the 
asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are 
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
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Note B: Deposits and Investments (Continued) 
 
The University has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2021: 
 
• Money Market Mutual Funds of $238,337 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 
inputs). 
 
 
Note C: Accountants Receivable and Other Receivables 
 
Accounts Receivable:  Accounts receivable consisted of the following at June 30, 2021: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Student tuition and fees 11,271,123$   
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (9,580,455)     

Net accounts receivable 1,690,668$    
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Note D: Capital Assets 
 
Following are the changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2021: 
 

Balance Retirements/ Balance
June 30, 2020 Additions Transfers Adjustments June 30, 2021

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 4,784,300$          -$                         -$                         -$                         4,784,300$          
Art 170,485               -                           -                           -                           170,485               
Construction in progress 368,658               4,928,232            (239,782)              -                           5,057,108            

Total assets not being depreciated 5,323,443$          4,928,232$          (239,782)$            -$                         10,011,893$        

Other capital assets
Non-major infrastructure networks 2,699,683$          200,398$             -$                         -$                         2,900,081$          
Land improvements 4,308,277            -                           -                           -                           4,308,277            
Buildings 117,937,382        -                           239,782               -                           118,177,164        
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 15,253,928          543,624               -                           (45,716)                15,751,836          
Software 1,027,290            2,595                   -                           -                           1,029,885            
Library materials 6,560,353            61,632                 -                           (23,150)                6,598,835            

Total other capital assets 147,786,913        808,249               239,782               (68,866)                148,766,078        

Less: accumulated depreciation for
Non-major infrastructure networks (599,767)             (124,269)              -                           -                           (724,036)              
Land improvements (2,252,895)          (225,130)              -                           -                           (2,478,025)           
Buildings (45,758,951)        (2,774,473)           -                           -                           (48,533,424)         
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment (12,564,803)        (711,177)              -                           45,716                 (13,230,264)         
Software (951,110)             (29,685)                -                           -                           (980,795)              
Library materials (6,424,361)          (65,597)                -                           23,150                 (6,466,808)           

Total accumulated depreciation (68,551,887)        (3,930,331)           -                           68,866                 (72,413,352)         
Other capital assets, net 79,235,026$        (3,122,082)$         239,782$             -$                         76,352,726$        

Capital asset summary:
Capital assets not being depreciated 5,323,443$          4,928,232$          (239,782)$            -$                         10,011,893$        
Other capital assets, at cost 147,786,913        808,249               239,782               (68,866)                148,766,078        

Total cost of capital assets 153,110,356        5,736,481            -                           (68,866)                158,777,971        
Less: accumulated depreciation (68,551,887)        (3,930,331)           -                           68,866                 (72,413,352)         

Capital assets, net 84,558,469$        1,806,150$          -$                         -$                         86,364,619$        

 
Capital assets acquired with funds under capital lease programs are included in the above 
capital assets.   
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Note E: Long-Term Liabilities 
 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows: 
 

Revenue Bonds Payable: 
 
Board of Regents of Oklahoma Colleges Student Housing Revenue Bonds, 

During 2015, the University refinanced the Board of Regents of Oklahoma Colleges Student 
Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 with Oklahoma Development Finance Authority (ODFA) 
2014 Revenue bonds.  The original bond purpose was for construction and renovating certain 
Student Housing Facilities.  The new bonds are due in annual installments varying from 
$160,000 to $315,000 plus semiannual interest ranging from 2% to 4.55%, with the final 
installment being due in the year 2034.  The Bonds are secured by the revenues to be derived 
from the Student Housing and Food Services Department and all monies in funds and accounts 
held by the trustee bank and available for debt service payments.  The refinancing resulted in a 
deferred outflow of resources that will be amortized over a period of twenty years, beginning in 
fiscal year 2015.  As of June 30, 2021, the unamortized cost totaled $288,679 
 
 

Balance Balance Amounts due 
June 30, 2020 Additions Reductions June 30, 2021 within one year

Bonds payable and capital lease obligations
Revenue Bonds Payable 3,465,000$         -$                        (195,000)$           3,270,000$         195,000$            
Revenue Bonds Premium 270,460              -                          (8,724)                 261,736              8,724                  

Total bonds 3,735,460           -                          (203,724)             3,531,736           203,724              

ODFA Master lease obligation 21,227,027         -                          (1,562,696)          19,664,331         1,573,831           
Master Lease Premiums 1,001,462           -                          (68,241)               933,221              68,241                
OCIA lease obligations 5,503,078           -                          -                          5,503,078           512,983              

Total capital lease 27,731,567         -                          (1,630,937)          26,100,630         2,155,055           

Other liabilities
Unearned Revenue 976,515              -                          (131,032)             845,483              131,032              
Accrued compensated absences 1,469,446           571,676              (543,488)             1,497,634           553,912              

Total long-term liabilities 2,445,961           571,676              (674,520)             2,343,117           684,944              

33,912,988$       571,676$            (2,509,181)$        31,975,483$       3,043,723$         
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Note E: Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Revenue Bonds Payable--Continued: 
 
Future aggregate maturities of principal and interest requirements on the bonds payable at June 
30, are as follows: 
 

Principal Interest Total

Year Ending June 30:
2022 195,000$       126,900$       321,900$       
2023 205,000         118,900         323,900         
2024 215,000         110,500         325,500         
2025 220,000         101,800         321,800         
2026 230,000         92,800           322,800         

2027-2031 1,295,000      315,300         1,610,300      
2032-2036 910,000         55,600           965,600         

3,270,000$    921,800$       4,191,800$    

 
Capital Lease Obligations: 
 
Oklahoma Development Finance Authority Master Lease Program 
 
In 2011, the ODFA issued Bond Series 2011B to refund the Series 2002C Master Lease 
Revenue Bonds, originally issued for $5,880,000.  Restricted funds held under the 2002 Bonds 
were applied to the outstanding 2002 Bonds and, together with monthly principal payments on 
the 2002 Bonds until the refunding transaction in November 2011, resulted in the outstanding 
liability of 2002 Bonds being approximately equal to the liability incurred under the 2011B 
Series.  The lease agreement calls for monthly payments to ODFA in an amount that equal debt 
service requirements on the portion of the bonds used to finance the lease.  The final payment 
on the lease is due December 1, 2022. 
 
In 2014, ODFA issued the ODFA Master Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2014C.  The 2014C 
Bonds were issued to fund capital improvements at several state colleges and universities in 
Oklahoma.  ODFA allocated the 2014C Bond proceeds to colleges and universities in the form 
of financing leases.  East Central University’s portion of this allocation totaled $4,928,000.  The 
proceeds from this lease will be used to fund improvements to the education building.  The 
lease agreement calls for monthly payments to ODFA in an amount that equal debt service 
requirements on the portion of the bonds used to finance the lease, those amounts range from 
$26,867 to $29,564.  The final payment on the lease is due May 15, 2034.  As of June 30 2021, 
the University has $6,706 available for its intended purpose. 
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Note E: Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
In 2015, ODFA issued the ODFA Master Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2015A.  The 2015A 
Bonds were issued to fund capital improvements at several state colleges and universities in 
Oklahoma.  ODFA allocated the 2015A Bond proceeds to colleges and universities in the form 
of financing leases.  East Central University’s portion of this allocation totaled $6,833,000.  The 
proceeds from this lease will be used to fund improvements to campus buildings.  The lease 
agreement calls for monthly payments to ODFA in an amount that equal debt service 
requirements on the portion of the bonds used to finance the lease, those amounts range from 
$19,923 to $39,167.  The final payment on the lease is due May 15, 2034.   
In 2016, the University refinanced the Board of Regents of Oklahoma Colleges Fine Arts Center 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 (the Bonds) with Oklahoma Development Finance Authority 
(ODFA) Real Property 2015A.  The original purpose was for constructing a Fine Arts Center for 
the amount of $5,000,000.  The new debt is due in annual installments varying from $122,000 to 
$278,000 plus interest ranging from 3.70% to 4.50%, with the final installment being due in the 
year 2035.   
 
In 2016, ODFA issued the ODFA Master Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2015D.  The 2015D 
Bonds were issued to fund capital improvements at several state colleges and universities in 
Oklahoma.  ODFA allocated the 2016D Bond proceeds to colleges and universities in the form 
of financing leases.  The University’s portion of this allocation totaled $1,000,000.  The proceeds 
from this lease will be used to fund improvements to Norris Field.  The lease agreement calls for 
monthly payments to ODFA in an amount that equal debt service requirements on the portion of 
the bonds used to finance the lease, those amounts range from $9,699 to $11,110.  The final 
payment on the lease is due May 15, 2025.   
 
In 2017, ODFA issued the ODFA Master Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2016F.  The 2016F 
Bonds were issued to fund capital improvements at several state colleges and universities in 
Oklahoma.  ODFA allocated the 2016F Bond proceeds to colleges and universities in the form 
of financing leases.  The University’s portion of this allocation totaled $10,000,000.  The 
proceeds from this lease will be used to build a new student dorm.  The lease agreement calls 
for monthly payments to ODFA in an amount that equal debt service requirements on the 
portion of the bonds used to finance the lease, those amounts range from $55,380 to $64,158.  
The final payment on the lease is due May 15, 2036.   
 
Oklahoma Capital Improvement Authority Leases 
 
The University has various OCIA lease obligations that it has acquired over the years to fund 
several different projects.  These obligations have various terms do to refinancing over the 
years.  Lease payments to OCIA totaling $66,740 during the year ended June 30, 2020, were 
made by the State of Oklahoma on behalf of the University.  These on-behalf payments have 
been recorded as restricted state appropriations in the statement of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position. 
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Note E: Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Future minimum lease payments under the University’s obligations to the OCIA and ODFA are 
as follows: 
 

Principal Interest Total

2022 2,086,814$    973,225$       3,060,039$    
2023 1,784,726      899,694         2,684,420      
2024 1,842,515      828,911         2,671,426      
2025 1,899,165      760,586         2,659,751      
2026 1,862,831      688,860         2,551,691      

2027-2031 9,715,105      2,297,294      12,012,399    
2032-2036 5,976,253      581,257         6,557,510      

25,167,409$   7,029,827$    32,197,236$   

Year Ending June 30:

Certain leases to finance the purchase of property are capitalized at the present value of future 
minimum lease payments.  The original capitalized cost of all such property under capital lease 
as of June 30, 2021 is as follows: 
 

 
Unearned revenue:  The University entered into a twenty year management agreement with the 
Professional Food Management, Inc. (Chartwells) in 2008.  Chartwells obtained the right to 
operate the cafeteria and other food services for the University and to be compensated by the 
University.  Chartwells invested approximately $2,150,000 on capital assets, fixtures, or 
improvements for the University’s dining and service facilities.  However, if the agreement is 
terminated prior to completion (2028), the University must reimburse Chartwells for the 
unamortized portion of the capital assets.  During 2015, another $237,000 was added for the 
addition of Papa John’s Pizza equipment.  At June 30, 2021, the University has a liability for 
approximately $845,000 in the accompanying statement of net position.  The amortization for 
the year ended June 30, 2021 was approximately $131,000. 
 
 
 
 
 

Assets Under Capital Lease

Buildings 57,597,697$      

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 13,694,532        

43,903,165$      



East Central University 
(A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 

 
 

21 

Note F: Retirement Plans 
 
The University’s academic and nonacademic personnel are covered by various retirement 
plans.  The plans available to University personnel include the Oklahoma Teachers’ Retirement 
System (OTRS), which is a State of Oklahoma public employees retirement system, the 
Supplemental Retirement Annuity (SRA), a single employer defined benefit pension plan 
available to employees hired prior to July 1, 1995, and a defined contribution 403(b) plan.  
Personnel may also be eligible to participate in the Other Post-Employment Insurance (OPEB) 
plan, as described further in Note H.  The University does not maintain the accounting records, 
hold the investments for, or administer these plans. 
 
The accounting and financial reporting for OTRS, the SRA, and the OPEB plans are recorded at 
the reporting entity level in the System’s financial statements.  That report may be obtained by 
writing to the Regional University System of Oklahoma, 3555 N.W. 58th Street, Suite 320, 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73112, or by calling (405) 924-8817. 
 
All payments made to these plans by the University are accounted for as compensation 
expense in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Oklahoma Teachers’ Retirement System (OTRS) 
 
Plan Description:  The University contributes to the Oklahoma Teachers’ Retirement System 
(the OTRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan sponsored by the 
State of Oklahoma.  The OTRS provides defined retirement benefits based on members’ final 
compensation, age, and term of service.  In addition, the retirement program provides for 
benefits upon disability and to survivors upon the death of eligible members.  The benefit 
provisions are established and may be amended by the legislature of the State of Oklahoma.  
Title 70 of the Oklahoma Statutes, Sections 17-101 through 116.9, as amended, assigns the 
authority for management and operations of the Plan to the Board of Trustees of the OTRS.  
The OTRS does not provide for a cost of living adjustment.  OTRS issues a publicly available 
financial report that can be obtained at www.ok.gov/OTRS. 
 
Funding Policy:  The University is required to contribute a fixed percentage of annual 
compensation on behalf of active members.  The employer contribution rate of 8.55%, is applied 
to annual compensation, and is determined by state statute. 
 
Employees’ contributions are also determined by state statute.  For all employees, the 
contribution rate was 7% of covered salaries and fringe benefits in 2021, 2020 and 2019.  For 
compensation in excess of $25,000, the employee’s contributions are paid directly by the 
University to the OTRS. 
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Note F: Retirement Plans (Continued) 
 
The University’s contributions to the OTRS for the year ended June 30, 2021, 2020 and 2019 
were approximately $4,527,000, $4,705,000, and $4,626,000, respectively.  These contributions 
included the University’s statutory contribution and the share of the employees’ contribution paid 
directly by the University. 
 
Defined Contribution 403(b) Plan 
The University also has a defined contribution 403(b) plan (DCP) available to full-time 
employees.  The DCP is administered by the RUSO System, and the plan provisions are 
established and may be amended by the Board of Regents.  Plan members may make 
voluntary contributions in accordance with IRS regulations.  The University has no contribution 
requirements, and no contributions were made during the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
Supplemental Retirement Annuity (SRA) 
Plan Description:  The University’s SRA plan is a single employer, defined benefit pension plan 
administered by the University’s Board of Regents.  The SRA was established by the 
University’s Board of Regents to provide supplemental retirement and death benefits to 
University employees who were hired prior to July 1, 1995, or to those eligible employees’ 
beneficiaries.  The authority to amend the SRA’s benefit provisions rests with the University’s 
Board of Regents.  The SRA is included in the financial report of the System, and does not 
issue separate, stand-alone financial statements. 
 
Funding Policy:  The authority to establish and amend eligible employees’ and employer 
contribution obligations to the SRA rests with the University’s Board of Regents.  Eligible 
employees are not required to make contributions to the SRA.  The University is required to 
contribute to the SRA an actuarially determined amount on an annual basis.  The plan currently 
has adopted a funding policy to achieve a 100 percent funding level by December 1, 2030. 
 
The University’s contributions to the SRA for the years ended June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019, 
were approximately $                                                 , $-0-, and $564,000, respectively. 
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Note G: Other Post-Employment Insurance Benefits 
 
Postemployment Healthcare Plan 
Plan Description:  The University’s postemployment healthcare plan is a single employer 
defined benefit plan administered by the System’s Board of Regents.  The plan provides 
medical and life insurance benefits to eligible retired employees until age 65.  A retiring 
employee must have been employed full-time in the system for not less than ten years 
immediately preceding the date of retirement; been a member of the OTRS during that time; 
and elected to receive a vested benefit under the provision of the Oklahoma Teachers’ 
Retirement System.  The retirement insurance program was adopted by the Board of Regents in 
1985.  In March of 2008, the Retiree Medical Trust for Regional University System of Oklahoma 
was established to hold assets and pay benefits on behalf of the University’s postemployment 
healthcare plan, and was administered by The Bank Oklahoma, N.A.  Prior to the establishment 
of the trust, the insurance benefits were accounted for on a pay-as-you-go basis so that 
premiums were made from current operating funds.  The plan is included in the financial report 
of the system.  That report may be obtained by writing to the Regional University System of 
Oklahoma, 3555 N.W. 58th Street, Suite 320, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73112, or by calling 
(405) 924-8817. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
The contribution requirements of the System are established and may be amended by the 
Regional University System of Oklahoma Board of Regents.  The University is required to 
contribute the actuarially determined employer contribution, in an amount actuarially determined 
by an actuary.  The ADEC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is 
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or 
funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.  In 2021, an updated valuation was not 
performed for 2021 for funding purposes. 
 
 
Note H: Funds Held in Trust by Others 
 
Beneficial Interest in State School Land Funds:  The University has a beneficial interest in the 
“Section Thirteen Fund State Educational Institutions” and the “New College Fund” administered 
by the Commissioners of the Land Office as trustees for the various educational institutions 
entitled thereto.  The University has the right to receive annually 3.7% of the distributions of 
income produced by “Section Thirteen Fund State Educational Institutions” assets and 100% of 
the distributions of income produced by East Central University’s “New College Fund.”  The 
University received approximately $989,000 during the year ended June 30, 2021, which is 
restricted to the construction or acquisition of buildings, equipment, or other capital items.  
These amounts are recorded as state appropriations restricted for capital purposes in the 
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.  State law prohibits the 
distribution of any corpus of these funds to the beneficiaries.  The cost basis of the total trust 
reserve for the University, held in trust by the commissioners of Land Office, was approximately 
$21,273,000 at June 30, 2021. 
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Note H: Funds Held in Trust by Others (Continued) 
 
Oklahoma State Regents Endowment Trust Fund:  In connection with the Oklahoma State 
Regents’ Endowment Program (the Endowment Program), the State of Oklahoma has matched 
contributions received under the program.  The state match amounts, plus any retained 
accumulated earnings, totaled approximately $4,380,000 at June 30, 2021, and is invested by 
the Oklahoma State Regents on behalf of the University. 
 
The University is entitled to receive an annual distribution of 4.5% of the three-year average of 
the June 30th market values on these funds.  As legal title of the State Regents matching 
endowment funds is retained by the Oklahoma State Regents, only the funds available for 
distribution, or approximately $299,000 at June 30, 2021, has been reflected as assets in the 
statement of net position. 
 
 
Note I: Related Party Transactions 
 
The Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation organized for the purpose of receiving and 
administering gifts for the benefit of the University.  Distributions of amounts held by the 
Foundation are subject to the approval of the Foundation’s Board of Trustees.  The 
Foundation’s primary function is to provide assistance to students of the University in the form of 
scholarships and awards, and during 2021, the Foundation provided approximately $761,000 in 
scholarships to students.  Additionally, the Foundation provides financial assistance to the 
faculty and staff of the University, as well as the University’s programs and projects, and during 
2021, the Foundation provided approximately $1,358,000 in aid to programs, faculty, and staff.  
Many of the contributions received by the Foundation are designated by the donors to be used 
for specific purposes or by specific departments.  In these instances, the Foundation serves 
essentially as a conduit.  Contributions that are not designated are used where the need is 
considered the greatest, as determined by the Foundation. 
 
The East Central University Gas Authority was created in 1963 to operate the natural gas 
pipeline system on campus.  The authority is inactive and the University handles the gas lines 
as needed. 
 
 
Note J: Commitments and Contingencies 
 
The University conducts certain programs pursuant to various grants and contracts that are 
subject to audit by federal and state agencies from various sources of the University.  Costs 
questioned as a result of these audits, if any, may result in refunds to these governmental 
agencies from various sources of the University. 
 



East Central University 
(A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 

 
 

25 

Note J: Commitments and Contingencies 
 
The University participates in the Federal Direct Student Loan Program (Direct Lending 
Program).  The Direct Lending Program requires the University to draw down cash from the 
U.S. Department of Education, as well as perform certain administrative functions under the 
Direct Lending Program.  For the year ended June 30, 2021, approximately $10,836,003 of 
Direct Lending Program loans was provided to University students. 
 
During the ordinary course of business, the University may be subjected to various lawsuits and 
civil action claims.  Management believes that resolution of any such matters pending at June 
30, 2021, will not have material adverse impact to the University. 
 
 
Note K: Risk Management 
 
The University is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and 
employee health, life, and accident benefits.  Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for 
claims arising from such matters other than torts, property, and workers’ compensation.  Settled 
claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three preceding years. 
 
The University, along with other state agencies and political subdivisions, participates in the 
State of Oklahoma Risk Management Program and the State Insurance Fund (Pools), public 
entity risk pools, currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for 
its members.  The University pays annual premiums to the pools for tort, property, and liability 
insurance coverage.  The Pool’s governing agreement specifies that the Pool will be self-
sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial carriers for claims 
in excess of specified stop-loss amounts. 
 
The University also participates in the College Association of Liability Management (CALM) 
Workers’ Compensation Plan for its workers’ compensation coverage.  CALM is an Interlocal 
Cooperative Act Agency that was organized to provide workers’ compensation insurance 
coverage for participating colleges and universities through the State Insurance Fund.  CALM is 
a political subdivision of the State of Oklahoma and is governed by a Board of Trustees elected 
from members of the participating colleges and universities. 
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Note K: Risk Management (Continued) 
 
The University participates in the Oklahoma Higher Education Employee Interlocal Group 
Health Insurance Pool (OKHEEI).   University employees are provided health insurance 
coverage through OKHEEI.   OKHEEI is an Interlocal Cooperative Act Agency organized as a 
public entity risk pool health insurance program for participating Colleges and Universities in the 
State.   The University pays monthly health insurance premiums to OKHEEI for employee health 
insurance coverage based on the health coverage elected by the employee and the maximum 
benefit provide by the University for health coverage.   Amounts of premiums exceeding benefits 
are payable by the employee.   The governing agreement for OKHEEI specifies that the pool will 
be self-sustaining through premiums received and with additional stop-loss coverages obtained. 
  If health care claims exceed reserves and reinsurance coverages, additional assessments may 
be made to participating Colleges and Universities.   As of June 30, 2021 additional 
assessments did not occur.  
 
 
Note L: East Central University Foundation, Inc. - Discretely Presented 

Component 
 
Nature of the Entity 
 
General: The East Central University Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is a nonprofit 
corporation.  The purposes for which the Foundation is organized are exclusively scientific, 
literary, charitable, educational, and artistic for the benefit of the University, Ada, Oklahoma; its 
faculty; its student body; and its programs.  The Foundation may also serve as trustee of 
charitable lead trusts, charitable remainder trusts, and other private trusts of which the 
Foundation and/or University are beneficiaries, notwithstanding the facts that the donors of such 
trusts retain a beneficial interest therein or that other charitable organizations are designated as 
beneficiaries of such trusts. 
 
As gifts are received by the Foundation, they are placed into new or existing funds, as 
appropriate, in accordance with the stipulations of the donors.  Distributions of amounts held by 
the Foundation are subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees (the Board).  The purposes 
for which the Foundation is organized are exclusively for the benefit of the University, its faculty, 
its student body, and its programs.  As such, the University and the Foundation are considered 
financially interrelated as defined by generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Basis of Presentation: The financial statement presentation follows accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States for not-for-profit entities.  The statements have been 
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.  Under U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles, net position and revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions as follows: 
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Note L: East Central University Foundation, Inc. - Discretely Presented 
Component (Continued) 

 
Unrestricted net position:  Consists of gifts received by the Foundation without stipulation and 
accumulated earnings which the Foundation uses for its operations. 
Expendable net position:  Primarily consists of gifts received by the Foundation which will 
have been restricted by the donor for a particular project or activity and accumulated earnings 
from endowment funds.  When a donor restriction is satisfied, temporarily restricted net 
position are reclassified to unrestricted net position. 

 
Nonexpendable net position:  This category represents gifts received by the Foundation with 
donor restrictions which require principle to be invested in perpetuity.  Generally, income 
earned from these assets is available to be used for purposes established by the donors in 
the year received unless restricted to future fiscal periods. 

 
Contributions: Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as 
revenues in the period received by the Foundation.  Conditional promises to give are not 
recognized until the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.  Contributions of 
assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the gift.  
Allowance is made for uncollectible contributions based upon management’s judgment and 
analysis of the creditworthiness of the donors, past collection experience, and other relevant 
factors.  As of June 30, 2021, no allowance was considered necessary. 
 
Contributions are reported as increases in the appropriate category of net position.  Expenses 
are reported as decreases in unrestricted net position.  Temporary restrictions on gifts to 
acquire long-lived assets are considered met in the period in which the assets are acquired or 
placed in service.  Gifts of property and equipment are recorded as unrestricted support unless 
explicit donor stipulations specify how the assets must be used, in which case the gift is 
recorded as restricted support.  Expirations of temporary restrictions (i.e., the donor-stipulated 
purpose has been fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported as net 
position released from restrictions.  Contributions which are received and whose restrictions are 
met in the same period are recognized as unrestricted contributions. 
 
Income and gains on investments are reported as increases in permanently restricted net 
position if the terms of the gift that gave rise to the investment of applicable law require such 
amounts be added to permanent endowment principal.  Income and gains are reported as 
increases in temporarily restricted net position if the terms of the gift or applicable law impose 
restrictions on the use of the income and as increases in unrestricted net position in all other 
cases. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents:  The Foundation considers all highly liquid debt instruments with a 
maturity of 3 months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 
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Note L: East Central University Foundation, Inc. - Discretely Presented 
Component (Continued) 

 
Investments:  The Foundation maintains the majority of its endowment assets in a pooled 
investment fund.  Additional investments are maintained separately in accordance with the 
donor’s instructions.  Investments are reported at fair value calculated in accordance with ASC 
Topic 820, “Fair Value Measurement” (ASC 820).  Investment securities with readily 
determinable market value information are adjusted to market value, with realized and 
unrealized appreciation and/or depreciation on investments to be recorded in the statement of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.  Fair value is determined based on quoted 
market prices, observable inputs, or unobservable inputs.  Investments included in the pool are 
certificates of deposits, common stock, corporate bonds, international bonds, and U.S. 
government securities.  The Foundation’s investment committee monitors the performance of all 
investments and instructs Foundation management as to the mix of assets maintained in the 
investment pool.  Investments are made in accordance with the investment policies of the 
Foundation. 
 
Other Assets:  Included in other assets is approximately $21,000 of cash surrender value assets 
related to insurance policies owned by the Foundation as of June 30, 2021. 
 
Investment Income:  Investment earnings are allocated to the individual sub-funds of the 
Foundation on a quarterly basis.  These earnings are allocated based upon the individual sub-
fund’s percentage of participation in the investment pool.  Realized and unrealized gains and 
losses are determined using the specific identification method; however, these transactions are 
included in the pool’s income for allocation purposes. 
 
A portion of investment earnings is allocated to support the operations of the Foundation.  The 
Foundation historically has allocated 25% of the realized investment earnings to operations.  
The amounts allocated are recorded in the unrestricted net asset classification in the 
accompanying statement of activities.  Amounts so transferred in excess of the current 
operations requirements remain in the unrestricted net asset classification for future use as 
deemed necessary by the Foundation management and to support the Foundation’s scholarship 
program. 
 
Note Payable:  On April 20, 2020, the Foundation was granted a loan (the Loan) from Vision 
Bank in the amount of $47,100, pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) under 
Division A, Title I of the CARES Act, which was enacted March 27, 2020.  The Loan bears 
interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum, due on demand or, in no demand, on March 20, 2022.  
The Loan may be prepaid by the Foundation at any time prior to maturity with no prepayment 
penalties.  Funds from the Loan may only be used for payroll costs, benefits, and certain other 
qualifying expenses, including rent, utilities, and interest on other debt obligations incurred 
before February 15, 2020.  The Foundation intends to use the entire Loan amount for qualifying 
expenses.  On December 8, 2020, the Loan was forgiven in the amount of $47,100. 
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Note L: East Central University Foundation, Inc. - Discretely Presented 
Component (Continued) 

 
On February 13, 2021, the Foundation was granted a second PPP Loan (the second Loan) from 
Vision Bank in the amount of $47,177.  The second Loan bears interest at a rate of 1.00% per 
annum, payable in one payment of the outstanding balance plus accrued interest due on 
February 16, 2026.  The Foundation used the entire second Loan amount for qualifying 
expenses.  On June 29, 2021, the second Loan was forgiven in the amount of $47,177. 
 
The Foundation recognized a total gain on extinguishment of debt of $94,277 on the statement 
of activities for the year ended June 30, 2021.  
 
Furniture and Equipment:  Furniture and equipment are stated at cost if purchased or at 
appraised value if received by donation.  Furniture and equipment are being depreciated on a 
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which range from 3 to 10 years.  The 
Foundation records impairments of its property and equipment when it becomes probable that 
the carrying value of the assets will not be fully recovered over the estimated useful life.  
Impairments are recorded to reduce the carrying value of the assets to their net realizable value 
based on facts and circumstances at the time of the determination.  No property or equipment 
impairments were recorded in 2021. 
 
Income Tax:  The income earned by the Foundation has been determined to be exempt from 
income taxes by the Internal Revenue Service in accordance with I.R.C. Section 501(c)(3).  
However, unrelated business income earned by the Foundation is subject to tax.  Additionally, 
the Foundation has been determined not to be a private foundation within the meaning of 
Section 509(a) of the Code. 
 
The Foundation evaluates and accounts for its uncertain tax positions, if any, in accordance with 
ASC Topic 740, “Income Taxes” (ASC 740), including the Foundation’s tax position as a tax-
exempt not-for-profit entity.  Through the Foundation’s evaluation of its uncertain tax positions, 
management has determined no uncertain tax positions exist as of June 30, 2021, which would 
require the Foundation to record a liability for the uncertain tax positions in its financial 
statements.  Interest and penalties, if any, resulting from any uncertain tax position required to 
be recorded by the Foundation would be presented in operating expenses in the statement of 
activities.  With few exceptions, the Foundation is no longer subject to income tax examinations 
by the U.S. Federal, State, or local tax authorities for years ended on or before June 30, 2018. 
 
Use of Estimates:  The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United State requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and 
accompanying notes.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Note L: East Central University Foundation, Inc. - Discretely Presented 
Component (Continued) 

 
Estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change include the valuation of 
marketable and nonmarketable investments and contributions receivable.  The Foundation’s 
various investment instruments are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and 
overall market volatility.  Due to the level of risk associated with these financial instruments, it is 
reasonably possible that changes in the values of the investments and beneficial interest will 
occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the 
statement of financial position.  Significant fluctuations in fair values could occur from year to 
year, and the amounts the Foundation will ultimately realize could differ materially.  
Management’s estimate of investments, contributions receivable, and evaluation for allowance 
is based on consideration of all relevant available information and an analysis of the 
collectability of individual contributions, which arise primarily from pledges at the financial 
statement date. 
 
Net Position Reclassifications:  The Foundation reclassifies net position from one net asset 
category to another as follows: 
 
a. Net position reclassifications which result from fulfillment of the purposes for which the net 

position were restricted and/or restrictions which expired with the passage of time. 
b. Net position reclassifications which occur when a donor withdraws or court action removes 

previously imposed restrictions, when a donor imposes restrictions on otherwise 
unrestricted  

c. Net position, when a donor changes or modifies their existing restriction, and/or when an 
existing donor restriction requires certain amounts to be reclassified. 

 
Concentrations of credit risk:  The Foundation has certain concentrations of credit risk with 
financial institutions in the form of uninsured cash and time deposits.  For purposes of 
evaluating credit risk, the stability of financial institutions conducting business with the 
Foundation is periodically reviewed, and management believes that credit risk related to the 
balances is minimal. 
 
Scholarship Awards:  Scholarships are accrued when the disbursements were made to the 
students, which is when all of the conditions would have been met and the scholarship would 
have been effectively earned by the student. 
 
Advertising Costs:  All costs associated with advertising are expensed as incurred. 
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Note L: East Central University Foundation, Inc. - Discretely Presented 
Component (Continued) 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
A summary of the cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2021, is as follows: 
 
Cash in bank 225,625$       
Money market account held at Vanguard 800,150         

1,025,775$    

Custodial Credit Risks-Deposits:  The Foundation had the following depository accounts as of 
June 30, 2021.  All deposits are carried at cost. 
 

Reported Bank
Amount Balance

Insured 225,625$       250,000$       
Uninsured and uncollateralized 800,150         1,024,287      

1,025,775$    1,274,287$    

Depository Account

 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Foundation’s deposits may 
not be returned.  While the Foundation’s investment policy does not address bank balances 
(other than money markets) that are uninsured or uncollateralized, deposits are generally 
required to be insured or collateralized.  
 
Pledges Receivable 
 
Pledges receivable represent commitments by donors to contribute to the Foundation.  The 
scheduled amounts to be received as of June 30, 2021, were as follows: 
 

Total

Amounts due in:
Less than a year 114,735$       
1 to 5 years -                 

114,735$       

Pledges receivable that are expected to be collected in less than 1 year are recorded at net 
realizable value.  Pledges receivable in subsequent years have not been discounted to net 
realizable value, the effect of which is considered to be insignificant to the financial statements.  
The commitments are to be paid as specified by the individual pledge agreements and, 
accordingly, are presented as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted net 
position in the accompanying financial statements. 
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Note L: East Central University Foundation, Inc. - Discretely Presented 
Component (Continued) 
 
An allowance for possible uncollectible pledge receivables is not considered necessary by 
management. 
 
Investments 
 
The Foundation primarily uses an investment manager to manage the investments, which 
includes purchasing and sales.  As of June 30, 2021, the investment manager was TIAA. 
 
As of June 30, 2021, the Foundation’s target allocation and allocation range for assets was as 
follows: 

Target Asset Allocation 
Allocation Range

Cash equivalents 1% 1%-4%

Core fixed income 24%
Treasury inflation protected securities (TIPS) 8%
High yield fixed income 6%
International fixed income 6%

Total fixed income 44% 35%-55%

U.S. large cap equity 23%
U.S. mid cap equity 7%
U.S. small cap equity 4%
Internationl large/mid cap equity 12%
Internationl small cap equity 3%
Emerging markets equity 3%
Real estate (REIT) 3%

Total equity 55% 45%-65%

Total 100%

Asset class

 
The investment policy also has certain specific prohibitions, such as no more than a 25% 
concentration of investments in one industry, nor more than a 5% ownership of any one 
company or more than 5% ownership of securities of a single issuer, other than the U.S. 
government.  The policy requires evaluation and reallocation as needed. 
 
 



East Central University 
(A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 

 
 

33 

Note L: East Central University Foundation, Inc. - Discretely Presented 
Component (Continued) 
 
Investments--Continued 
 
Investment securities are presented at fair value.  Fair values were determined on the basis of 
closing prices at June 30, 2021, as quoted on major stock exchanges or over-the-counter 
markets. 
 

Excess (Deficit)
of Market

Cost Market Over Cost

Mutual funds 36,058,166$   40,771,131$   4,712,965$    
Corporate stock-private 141,281         141,281         -                     
Certificates of deposit 144,457         144,457         -                     

36,343,904$   41,056,869$   4,712,965$    

 
The Foundation recognized $2,920,498 during 2021 from net gains on sale of investments.  
These gains have been combined with other earnings on investments and allocated throughout 
the year through the consolidated investment pool. 
 
The following table provides information as of June 30, 2021, concerning the fair value of 
maturity of investments. 
 

More Than More Than More Than Total  
6 Months 6 Months to 1 Year to 3 Years to More Than Fair
or Less to 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 5 Years Value Cost

Mutual funds(no maturity) -$              -$               -$                   -$                 -$                 40,771,131$   36,058,166$    
Corporate stock-private(no matur -                -                 -                    -                   -                   141,281          141,281           
Certificates of deposit 53,842       -                 90,615           -                   -                   144,457          144,457           

53,842$     -$               90,615$         -$                 -$                 41,056,869$   36,343,904$    

Type of Investment
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Note L: East Central University Foundation, Inc. - Discretely Presented 
Component (Continued) 
 
Credit Risk:  Credit risk is the risk that an insurer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill 
its obligations.  The following table provides information concerning credit risk as of June: 
 

Fair Value  FV as a % of
Cost (FV) Total FV

Not rated:
Mutual funds 36,058,166     40,771,131     99.304%
Corporate stock-private 141,281          141,281          0.344%
Certificates of deposit 144,457          144,457          0.352%

36,343,904$   41,056,869$   100.000%

Moody's Rating

Custodial Risk: For investments, custodial risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty, the Foundation will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities in the possession of an outside party. 
 
Art 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Foundation received a donation of various pieces of 
art.  The art is not being held as an investment.  Each item is cataloged for educational, 
research, scientific, or curatorial purposes, and activities verifying the existence and assessing 
the condition of the items are performed continuously.  The art was recorded at appraised value 
at the date the gift was given.  There will be no planned depreciation of the art as it will be 
reviewed periodically for impairment.  As of June 30 2021, the art had a value of approximately 
$330,000, and is reported as capital assets in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Restricted Net Position Composition 
 
Expendable and nonexpendable net position is predominantly restricted for scholarships and 
programs for the University. 
 
Related-Party Transactions 
 
The Foundation occupies, without charge, certain premises located on the campus of the 
University.  
 
The Foundation benefits from voluntary services donated by individuals and businesses which 
have not been reflected in the financial statements due to their immateriality.  
 
During 2021, the Foundation had Board member who served as an officer of local banks where 
the Foundation has a certificate of deposit.  As of June 30, 2021 the certificate of deposit had a 
book balance of $225,625. 
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Note L: East Central University Foundation, Inc. - Discretely Presented 
Component (Continued) 
 
General University Education Assistance 
 
General university education assistance to programs consists of general expenses for various 
University organizations and programs. 
 
Endowments 
 
The Foundation’s endowments consist of 352 individual donor-restricted funds established for a 
variety of scholarships and activities.  As required by accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States, net position associated with endowment funds are classified and reported 
based on donor-imposed restrictions.  The endowments represent only those net position that 
are under the control of the Foundation. 
 
Interpretation of Relevant Law:  The Foundation has interpreted the Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act of 2006 (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the 
purchasing power of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to 
the contrary.  Therefore, the Foundation classifies as permanently restricted net position 1) the 
original value of endowed gifts, 2) any subsequent gifts, and 3) any accumulations to the 
permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the donor gift instrument. 
 
Spending Policy:  The Foundation has established a spending policy whereby the total amount 
available to be disbursed (i.e., the Distributable Cash Income) from the Foundation’s 
endowment fund and operating fund is determined annually. 
 
The Distributable Cash Income is determined using the most recent 5-year average return on 
investments (ROI).  The purpose of the spending policy is to establish an overall spending limit 
for the amount of money that can be disbursed from the Foundation’s endowment fund and 
operating fund each fiscal year.  The spending policy limit is determined by March 31 of each 
year and is used for budgeting purposes for the following fiscal year that starts on July 1. 
 
The primary goal of the spending policy is to position the endowment fund and the unrestricted 
fund so that there is a balance between long-term growth and accumulation versus annual 
distributions. 
 
The spending policy utilizes the most recent 5-year average ROI percentage, which allows for 
long-term ROI trends to be built into the spending policy.  The spending policy calculation will 
have an annual floor and ceiling which will enable the Foundation to spend a base amount from 
the endowment fund in low ROI periods and have extra savings in high ROI periods. 
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Note L: East Central University Foundation, Inc. - Discretely Presented 
Component (Continued) 
 
Endowments--Continued 
 
Net Position Composition of Endowments: The net asset composition of endowments by type of 
fund as of June 30, 2021, was as follows: 
 

2021
Original donor-restricted gift 
amounts and amounts required to 
be maintained in perpetuity by 
donor 30,939,570$       

Accumulated investment earnings 5,416,246           

Total, restated 36,355,816$       

Changes in Net Position of Endowments: 
Changes in the net position of endowments for the year ended June 30, 2021, were as follows: 
 

Donor-Restricted

in Perpetuity
Net position, beginning of year, restated 31,239,842$   

Contributions and other revenues 1,208,013      
Investment earnings, net, restated 5,221,147      
Amounts appropriated for expenditures (1,313,186)     

Net position, end of year, restated 36,355,816$   

 
Disclosure about Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
 
Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date.  In 
estimating fair value, the Foundation utilizes valuation techniques that are consistent with the 
market approach, the income approach, and/or the cost approach.  Such valuation techniques 
are consistently applied.  Inputs to valuation techniques include the assumptions that market 
participants would use in pricing an asset.  Fair values may not represent actual values of 
assets that could have been realized on the measurement date or that will be realized in the 
future.  The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a 
material effect on the estimated fair value amounts. 
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Note L: East Central University Foundation, Inc. - Discretely Presented 
Component (Continued) 
 
ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to 
quote prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to 
unobservable inputs.  The fair value hierarchy is as follows: 
 Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology are quote prices (unadjusted) for identical 

assets or liabilities in active markets. 
 Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and 

liabilities in active markets and inputs that are observable for the asset and liability, either 
directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

 Level 3 inputs consist of unobservable inputs which are used when observable inputs are 
unavailable and reflect an entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions that the market 
participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities.  Real Estate held as investments 
would be valued as level 3 inputs. 

 
Disclosure about Fair Value of Financial Instruments--Continued 
 
The following table presents the fair value measurement of assets recognized in the 
accompanying statements of financial position at fair value on a recurring basis and the level 
within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at June 30: 
 

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant

Assets Markets for Observable Unobservable
Measured at Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Mutual funds 40,771,131$   40,771,131$    -$                    -$                    

Corporate stock-private 141,281          -                      -                     141,281          

Certificates of deposit 144,457          -                      144,457          -                     

41,056,869$   40,771,131$    144,457$        141,281$        

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of 
financial instrument. 
 
 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Certificates of Deposit: The carrying amounts approximate 

fair value. 
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Note L: East Central University Foundation, Inc. - Discretely Presented 
Component (Continued) 
 
 Investments: The fair values of mutual funds are based on quoted market prices for identical 

assets in active markets utilizing Level 1 inputs.  The fair values of U.S. government 
securities, international bonds, and corporate bonds, for the most part, are obtained from 
independent pricing services utilizing Level 2 inputs.  The fair value measurements 
considered to be observable inputs may include dealer quotes, market spreads, cash flows, 
the U.S. Treasury yield curve, live trading levels, trade execution data, market consensus 
prepayment speeds, credit information, and the security’s terms and conditions, among 
other things. 

 Real Estate Held as Investments: The fair values of real estate held as investments are 
based on management’s estimated fair values using unobservable Level 3 inputs.  At June 
30, 2021 the fair market values remained the same. 

 
The Foundation had real estate held as investments carried at fair value on a nonrecurring basis 
at June 30, 2021.  The fair market values of these investments did not change during the year.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial 

Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards 

Board of Regents 
Regional University System of Oklahoma 
East Central University 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of East Central University (the 
University), a department of the Regional University system of Oklahoma (RUSO), 
which is a component unit of the State of Oklahoma, as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the University’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated October 29, 2021 

Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial 
statements of East Central University, Inc. (the “Foundation”), the University’s 
discretely presented component unit, as described in our report on the University’s 
financial statements.  This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ 
testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters 
that are reported on separately by those auditors. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
the University's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to 
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
University’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a 
timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether East Central University's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Greenwood Village, Colorado 
January 7, 2022 
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major  
Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform 
Guidance, and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Required by the Uniform Guidance 
 
 
Board of Regents 
Regional University System of Oklahoma 
East Central University 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited East Central University’s compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that 
could have direct and material effect on each of the East Central University’s major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.  The University’s major federal 
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and 
the terms and conditions applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditors' Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the 
University’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the comptroller General of the United States; and 
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether non-compliance with the types of compliance referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the University’s compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances.   
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program.  However, our audit does not provide 
a legal determination of the University’s compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, East Central University complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each 
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of East Central University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the University’s internal control 
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
University’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we considered to be material 
weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  The 
purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform 
Guidance 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the East Central University as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2021 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the University’s basic financial statements.  We issued our report thereon dated October 
29, 2021, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements.  Our audit was 
conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the basic financial statements.  The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and 
is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  The information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain auditing 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal awards is fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
 
 
Greenwood Village, Colorado 
January 7, 2022 



Pass-Through
Entity

CFDA Identification
Number Number

U.S. Department of Education
Student Financial Assistance Cluster:

Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 N/A $ 6,085,160   $ -                  
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 84.007 N/A 103,000      -                  
Federal Work Study Program 84.033 N/A 211,246      -                  
Federal Direct Student Loan Program 84.268 N/A 10,836,003 -                  

Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster 17,235,409 -                  
Trio Program Cluster:

Upward Bound 84.047 N/A 834,112      -                  
Veterans Upward Bound 84.047A N/A 335,539      -                  
Upward Bound Math/Science 84.047M N/A 354,537      -                  
TRIO-Student Support Services 84.042 N/A 523,697      -                  
McNair Post-Baccalaureate Achievement 84.217A N/A 288,656      -                  
Educational Opportunity Centers 84.066A N/A 486,308      -                  

Total Trio Program Cluster 2,822,849   -                  
Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds:

Student Aid Portion 84.425E 1,533,173   -                  
Institution Aid Portion 84.425F 5,017,331   -                  
Minority Serving 84.425L 580,202      -                  

Total Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds 7,130,706   -                  
Other Direct Programs:

Higher Education Institutional Aid (SIP) 84.031 N/A 248,520      -                  
Math Teacher's Circle 84.299A 4,383          -                  

Passed through Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education
Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs 84.344S 61,518        -                  
Strengthening Minority-Serving Institutions/Native American Voices 84.382 N/A 312,526      -                  

Total other direct programs 626,947      -                  

Total U.S. Department of Education 27,815,911 -                  

U.S. Department of Treasury
Passed through the State of Oklahoma

Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019 157,220      -                  
Passed through Chickasaw Nation

Corona Virus Relief Fund 21.019 500,000      -                  

Total U.S. Department of Treasury 657,220      -                  

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
CCDF Cluster

Title IV:  Child Welfare 93.575 N/A 58,646        -                  
Passed through Oklahoma State Department of Human Services

Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 201,385      -                  
Total CCDF Cluster 260,031      -                  

Bridges to Baccalaureate 93.859 N/A
93.243 N/A 172,413      -                  

Drug-Free Communities Support Program Grants 93.276 N/A 121,139      -                  
93.632 N/A 19,046        -                  

Medicaid Cluster
Medical Assistance Program (Developmental Disabilities) 93.778 00001273 280,143      -                  
CARA Act - Comprehensive Addition and Recovery Act of 2016 93.799 51,039        -                  

Passed through Oklahoma INBRE IdeA Network
INBRE Summer Research 93.859 7,075          -                  
INBRE Mentoring Human T-Cell 93.859 4,407          -                  

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 915,293      -                  

(Continued)

East Central University
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Passed
Federal Through to

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Grantor / Program Title Expenditures Subrecipients

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects of Regional and 

University Centers for Excellence in Developmental Disabilities Education, 

See Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards  6



Pass-Through
Entity

CFDA Identification
Number Number

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Child Nutrition Cluster

Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 $ 1,893          $ -                  

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 1,893          -                  

R&D Cluster
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Research/Training/Fellowships (ERAP) 66.511 N/A 85,170        -                  

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 85,170        -                  

Department of Interior, Bureau of Reclamation
Passed through Native American and International Affairs Office

Northern Cross Timbers Ref Stream Project 15.519 19-032 27,727        -                  

Total Department of Interior, Bureau of Reclamation 27,727        -                  

National Science Foundation
Sustainable Energy Engineering for Empowering 47.041 N/A 16,385        

Passed through Oklahoma State University
Education and Human Resources (OKAMP) 47.076 AA-5-29849 26,550        
Integrative Activities 47.083 31,559        

Total National Science Foundation 74,494        -                  

NASA
Passed through University of Oklahoma

Office of Stem Engagement - Education (OKNASA) 43.008 2011-42 22,025        -                  

Total NASA 22,025        -                  

Total R&D Cluster 209,416      -                  

U.S. Department of Justice
OVW Technical Assistance Initiative 16.526 N/A 178,691      -                  

Total U.S. Department of Justice 178,691      -                  

Institute of Museum and Library Services
IMLS Library Media Grant 45.312 N/A 42,665        -                  

Total Institute of Museum and Library Services 42,665        -                  

National Park Services
OK Dept of Wildlife Conservation 15.615 N/A 1,320          -                  

Total National Park Services 1,320          -                  

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 29,822,409 $ -                  

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Grantor / Program Title Expenditures Subrecipients

(Continued)

East Central University
A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Passed
Federal Through to

See Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards  7
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NOTE A BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the 
federal awards activity of East Central University under programs for the federal government for 
the year ended June 30, 2021.  The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with 
the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of East Central 
University, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, 
or cash flows of East Central University. 
 
 
NOTE B SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

• Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. 

• Under CFDA number 84.268, the Federal Direct Student Loan Program (“Direct Loan 
Program”), the U.S. Department of Education makes loans to enable a student or parent 
to pay the costs of the student’s attendance at a postsecondary school.  The Direct Loan 
Program enables an eligible student or parent to obtain a loan to pay for the student’s cost 
of attendance directly from the U.S. Department of Education rather than through private 
lenders.  The University administers the origination and disbursement of the loans to 
eligible students or parents.  The University is not responsible for the collection of these 
loans.   

• The University has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

• During the year ended June 30, 2021, the University did not provide any federal awards 
to subrecipients. 

 
 
NOTE C FEDERAL DIRECT STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM 
 
The University participates in the Federal Direct Loan Program (the Program), CFDA number 
84,268, which includes the Federal Subsidized Direct loan, the Federal Unsubsidized Direct Loan, 
the Federal Graduate Student PLUS Direct Loan, and Federal Direct Loans Parents of 
Undergraduate Students.  The Program requires the University to draw down cash; and the 
University is required to perform certain administrative functions under the Program.  Failure to 
perform such functions may require the University to reimburse the loan guarantee agencies.  The 
University is not responsible for the collection of these loans.  The value of loans made during the 
audit period are considered Federal Awards expended for the audit period. 



East Central University 
A Department of the Regional University System of Oklahoma 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

 
 

9 

Summary of Auditors’ Results 
 
1. The opinion expressed in the independent accountants’ report was: 
 

  Unmodified   Qualified   Adverse   Disclaimed 
 
2. The independent accountants’ report on internal control over financial reporting described: 
 

Significant deficiencies                                                            Yes   None reported 
 

Material weaknesses?                                                             Yes   No 
 
3. Noncompliance considered material to the financial statements was 

disclosed by the audit?                                                           Yes   No 
 
4. The independent auditors’ report on internal control over compliance for major federal awards 

programs disclosed: 
 

Significant deficiencies?                                                          Yes   None reported 
 

Material weaknesses?                                                             Yes   No 
 
5. The opinion expressed in the independent auditors’ report on compliance for major federal 

awards was: 
 

  Unmodified   Qualified   Adverse   Disclaimed 
 
6. The audit disclosed findings required to be reported  

by the Uniform Guidance?            Yes   No 
 
7. The University’s major program were: 
 

Cluster/Program  CFDA Number 
   
Student Financial Assistance Cluster   
 Federal Pell Grant  84.063 
 Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants  84.007 
 Federal Direct Student Loan Program  84.268 
 Federal Work Study  84.033 
Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds COVID-19   
   Student Aid Portion  84.425E 
   Institution Aid Portion  84.425F 
   Minority Serving  84.425L 
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Summary of Auditors’ Results (Continued) 
 

Cluster/Program  CFDA Number 
   
Trio Program Cluster   
   Upward Bound  84.047 
   Veterans Upward Bound  84.047A 
   Upward Bound Math/Science  84.047M 
   TRIO-Student Support Services  84.042 
   McNair Post-Baccalaureate Achievement  84.217A 
   Educational Opportunity Centers  84.066A 

 
8. The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as those terms are 

defined in the Uniform Guidance was $750,000. 
 
9. The University qualified as a low-risk auditee as that term is defined in 

Uniform Guidance.    Yes   No 
 
 
Section II - Findings Required to be Reported by Government Auditing Standards 
 
None to report for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
 
Section III - Findings Required to be Reported by the Uniform Guidance 
 
None to report for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
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Findings Required to be Reported by Government Auditing Standards 
 
None to report for the year ended June 30, 2020. 
 
 
Findings Required to be Reported by the Uniform Guidance 
 
None to report for the year ended June 30, 2020. 
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